You ECREC

Your Employee Manual



Table of Contents

CREC – THE ORGANIZATION	
Letter From The Executive Director	
What We Do	
How We Operate	
Mission, Vision, Core Values & Goals You and CREC	
TOU ATIU CREC	
CREC – EMPLOYEES	
You and Your Job	
Performance Evaluations	
Personnel File	
YOUR BENEFITS	,
Assignment of Benefits Temporary Personnel	
Annual Increases	
Annual Salary Notices	
Payroll Information	9-10
Eligibility Tables	
Employee Self Service	2
BENEFIT SPECIFICS	
Employee Assistance ProgramFlexible Benefits – Section 125	22
Tuition Reimbursement	
Leave Time	
Vacation and Holidays	
Retirement	2
CREC 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan	2
CREC Roth 403(b)	28
Tax Sheltered Annuities	
Individual Auto/Home Insurance	
Health Insurance Life Insurance and Long Term Disability	
Aflac	
Credit Union	
Verizon Discounts	
POLICIES AND NOTICES	_
Code of Ethics	3
Affirmative Action	رک ۲
Drug Free Workplace	ری '۶
CREC Council Procedures	34
Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988	
Sexual Harassment	35
Smoking Policy	35
Weapons and Dangerous Instruments	
Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting	
Confidentiality Technology Policy and Procedures	32
Notice of Privacy Practices under HIPPA	
Notice of thivacy fractices and if the transfer in the transfe	
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	
CREC's Workers Compensation Medical Care Plan	40
Travel Reimbursement	
Purchasing Procedures	
Note Concerning Absences	4
Absence Due to Inclement Weather or School Closing Attendance	
AESOP	
Department of Communications	
Branding	Λ΄





NOTICE: PLEASE READ CAREFULLY THIS MATERIAL DEFINES YOUR RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Introduction and Disclaimer Notice

This Employee Manual is designed to acquaint you with CREC and provide information about working conditions, employee benefits, and some of the policies affecting your employment. You should read, understand, and comply with all personnel polices and practices. This manual describes many of your responsibilities as an employee and outlines the programs developed by CREC to benefit employees. One of our objectives is to provide a work environment that is conducive to both professional and personal growth.

No employee manual can anticipate every circumstance or question about policy. This manual is not an employment contract and is not intended to create contractual obligations of any kind, either with respect to the employment relationship itself or to any policies or benefits described herein. Where there are differences between the provisions of this manual and more specific statements contained in the files of CREC (such as insurance policies), or in collective bargaining agreements, those statements shall control. The employment relationship between CREC and its employees (unless the employee is a member of a collective bargaining unit) is employment at will. Under this relationship, neither the employee nor CREC is bound to continue the employment relationship and either may choose, at will, to end the relationship at any time, for any reason, with or without notice. If you are a member of a collective bargaining unit, and there is a difference between the provisions of this manual and the collective bargaining agreement, the collective bargaining agreement controls.

The need may arise to change policies described in this manual. CREC, therefore, reserves the right to change, revise, or eliminate any of the policies and/or benefits described in this manual at its sole and absolute discretion. Employees will be notified of such changes as they occur. Please note: this manual is the property of CREC and you must return it upon separation from employment or upon request.

CREC - THE ORGANIZATION

Dear CREC Employee:

I would like to take this opportunity to reaffirm our commitment to provide a safe, dynamic, and enjoyable workplace and educational facility for all who come in contact with us. The challenges presented to our students will be met as we work together to fulfill the vision for CREC as set by the CREC Council. CREC's Vision Statement reads as follows: "To become our member district's primary resource to facilitate collaborative efforts that create equitable and sustainable educational opportunities, assist in maximizing district and regional resources, and advance successful educational practices for all learners at all ages." I know each of you will do your best to keep CREC at the forefront of educational leadership.

I would also like to remind you of our commitment to provide an environment free of sexual harassment and other civil rights violations. It is extremely important that each of us be sensitive to the diversity of our staff, clients, and students. Thoughtless comments may be just as hurtful as overt intimidation. It is your responsibility to report any violation of civil rights that you experience or observe. This includes any civil rights violation experienced by you, any other CREC employee, student, member of the public, or any other individual on CREC premises or in contact with a CREC employee through CREC business.

I encourage you to bring such matters to the attention of your program director or administrator. In the event that you prefer not to follow that course of action, you may contact Regina Terrell, director of human resources, or bring the matter directly to my attention. The Civil Rights Grievance Procedure Form is also available on-line on the CREC Intranet at crecweb.crec.org.

I am confident that you will continue to bear your responsibility for ensuring that CREC continues to be an excellent environment to work and learn.

Sincerely, Grey J. Hmi

Greg J. Florio, Ed.D. Executive Director



WHAT WE DO

CREC is a regional educational service center. Our mission is to help our regional school systems to work together to meet educational needs and solve common educational problems. All of our programs have been designed to improve the quality of public education. This is why CREC exists.

Although we are a voluntary association of local boards of education, CREC operates somewhat like a business. The 35 school districts that are members of CREC support it financially by purchasing services. However, the school systems are not required to do so. In order to survive and flourish, CREC must continually work hard to earn the support and involvement of local districts by providing necessary, high-quality services that are cost effective. Anything less diminishes our value as a cooperative educational resource to local schools. While most of our financial support is from sale of services, CREC is eligible for state, federal, and private grants and receives some basic support from the State of Connecticut.

HOW WE OPERATE

The Capitol Region Education Council is governed by board of education members appointed by each member school district. One representative from each district forms the Council, which is responsible for making policy.

A board of directors comprised of 10 voting members of the Council oversees the affairs of CREC. This Council meets monthly to address programmatic, fiscal, and personnel items. The executive director carries out the directives of the board.

CREC is geographically and programmatically diverse. It employs approximately 2,500 people including project consultants, temporary, and substitute employees and is supported by an annual budget of approximately \$400 million. Our central administration, better known as "CREC Central," is located at 111 Charter Oak Avenue, Hartford. CREC programs and schools are located throughout the region.

CREC's Divisions and Departments are:

- Community Education
- Communications
- Magnet Schools
- Operations and Facilities
- Construction
- Business Services
- Transportation

- Institute of Teaching and Learning (IT&L)
- Data Analysis, Research, and Technology (DART)
- Technical Assistance and Brokering Services (TABS)
- Student Services
- Open Choice Programs
- Human Resources





MISSION

To pursue equity, excellence, and success for all through high-quality educational services.

To become our member districts' primary resource to facilitate collaborative efforts that create equitable and sustainable educational opportunities, maximizing district and regional resources and advancing successful educational practices for learners at all ages.

CORE VALUES

Expect Excellence | Demand Equity

Act with Courage | Embrace Collaboration

CREC will be the convener of regional conversations to share, analyze, and disseminate data for the purpose of assisting with educational planning at the local and regional level.

CREC will work to eliminate bias and implement equitable practices, policies, and structures that lead to successful outcomes.

CREC will be an expert and a partner in the development and implementation of innovative, research-driven programs and services to support children, families, adults, and communities.

CREC will work collaboratively to develop sustainable and equitable school choice programs in the region.

CREC will lead the region's efforts to increase the number of students who demonstrate preparedness for college or careers.

CREC will be an efficient, accountable, and transparent organization.

CREC will be an organization that values and develops its employees.



YOU AND CREC

CREC's greatest resource is its employees. You and the other women and men who work for CREC are the measure of what this organization can do. Whether in administration or teaching, support, professional, or clinical services – your abilities, energies, and commitment largely determine what this organization will accomplish.

CREC is a demanding, yet rewarding environment in which to work. We expect a lot from our staff. Our clients have high expectations of us and expect us to help meet their needs.

There's a challenge in working for an organization that changes rapidly. But, as the needs of our clients change, so must CREC. Our staff must be flexible, able to adapt to new areas of service, new locations and new clients. CREC strives to provide opportunities for staff training so that you continue to grow as the organization does.

All CREC employees should take pride in our professional atmosphere and in the positive image that we present as representatives for the organization. Staff members are expected to use their best judgment in dressing appropriately to present at all times a professional and neat appearance, and to assure safe and sanitary working conditions. In light of the nature of the job responsibilities of some employees and leadership's concern for the safety of our employees and the safety of our students, there are specific articles of clothing that certain employees will not be permitted to wear. A notice of the prohibited articles will be provided to employees assigned to programs in which safety is a factor. Please direct any concerns or questions to your program director, principal, or supervisor.

CREC needs people who are efficient, responsive, and dedicated to serving children, families, and educators. We seek people who are passionate about helping others and who take pride in their work. CREC's mission demands it.

CREC EMPLOYEES

YOU AND YOUR JOB

Most CREC employees have a **job description**. It tells them what to expect from their job and what CREC expects. CREC offers many different services. Although you share a job title with many other employees, your specific responsibilities may vary according to the nature of your program. For example, a paraeducator working with emotionally disturbed adolescents will have different responsibilities than one working in a class with elementary-school-aged, hearing-impaired students. If you have not received a job description, ask your program manager or the Department of Human Resources for a copy.

CREC is an "at-will" employer and operates under the principle that employees have the right to resign their position at any time with or without notice, or with or without cause. CREC, the employer, has similar rights to terminate the employment relationship at any time with or without notice, or with or without cause. This status may only be altered by written approval of the executive director and executed for the specific employee.

Many of your **rights and responsibilities** are outlined in this manual. As a new employee of CREC, you will become acquainted with CREC and your individual program through the following process:

• When you are interviewed you are given information on your job and the individual CREC program in which you would be working. After being hired, you will attend two orientations. The orientation given by your program is specific to your job and the way your program operates. You are also required to attend **New Employee Orientation** held by the Department of Human Resources. This orientation includes an overview of CREC as well as specific information related to your benefits.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS

All CREC employees are evaluated periodically. You and your principal, program manager, or supervisor must meet throughout the year to evaluate your work. These sessions are good opportunities to share your concerns, your aspirations, and your successes with your immediate supervisor. On a yearly basis, a final evaluation is conducted and becomes part of your permanent personnel file in the Human Resources Department.

CREC has a firm commitment to perform evaluations of personnel, whatever their category and level. The primary purpose of an evaluation is to assist personnel in professional development and achieving CREC goals.

Evaluating staff performance is one of the most important duties of a manager or supervisor. Performance evaluations, used correctly, can be an effective means of motivating and developing employees.

CREC provides evaluation and professional development plans to assess employee performance at least once a year. The plans and required forms are featured on CREC's intranet under the Human Resources section at: **crecweb.crec. org**. Your evaluation plays an important part of the analysis, along with your program manager's recommendation, in determining your annual salary increase. However, CREC reserves the right to take any factors it deems relevant into account when making salary decisions.

The most important written document that describes your rights and responsibilities is the CREC Personnel Policy and Procedures document, available on the intranet at CREC's website. It contains an overview of all CREC's policies and procedures related to: employment, wage and salary, benefits/leaves of absence, and staff regulations.

After reviewing the Personnel Policy and Procedures, if you still have questions, call the Department of Human Resources (860-524-4023). Staff in the department can lead you to the right unit, program, or person for the answer. The Department of Human Resources provides services and information in areas such as:

• Annual salary notices

Employment verification

• Benefits

• Personnel files and records

Job vacancies

• Interpretation of personnel policies and procedures

If you are a teacher, paraeducator/child care worker, nurse, or van driver, you are represented by one of three bargaining units and can use them as another source of information. Teachers, Paraeducators/Child Care Workers (CCWs) and Van Drivers. The teachers are represented by the Capitol Region Education Council Education Association ("CRECEA"). The paraeducators and child care workers are represented by Local 1303 of Council 4 American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO ("AFSCME"). Van drivers are represented by Teamsters Local 671. Nurses are represented by the American Federation of Teachers - Connecticut (AFT). New employees are given a copy of their collective bargaining agreement at the New Employee Orientation session held each month at the Central Administration Office also known as "CREC Central". Renegotiated contracts are provided to CREC schools, programs, and divisions for distribution to bargaining unit members. However, if you do not have a contract, you can find a copy on the CREC intranet. Please take the time to read the contract. It will describe your specific rights under union representation.

The Open Door: CREC management believes in open communication among all levels of staff within the organization. It is important and helpful to you, and essential to the effective operation of the organization. Your program manager is the most direct line of communication between you and the organization and is the most likely person to help you get your questions answered.

PERSONNEL FILE

Your official CREC personnel file is housed in the Department of Human Resources. You may review your file upon request to the director or assistant director of human resources. You may have anything copied, except legally protected materials (e.g. transcripts), within a reasonable amount of time. **Please note**: Copies may be made available at YOUR expense.



YOUR BENEFITS

Eligibility for benefits is determined by your position, your full- or part-time status, and the type of work for which you are hired each year. Project consultant, and temporary and substitute employees are ineligible for benefits except pursuant to applicable law.

ASSIGNMENT OF BENEFITS

Available benefits are determined based on an individual employee's classification, job title, number and length of workdays, and full- or part-time status. No benefits are assigned to employees working less than 15 hours per week, except pursuant to applicable law. Otherwise, employees working 15 – 19.9 hours per week are eligible for personal days and sick time ONLY (no holidays or vacations). Employees working 20 hours or more per week are eligible for benefits as stated in the Eligibility Tables in this manual.

The standard for determining eligibility for benefits is based on both the 12-month annual work year and the academic work year, both with a five-day work week. These standards are specified in the eligibility tables by job classification and working hours.

Employees assigned to work less than a full standard academic (school) or annual (fiscal) year and/or less than a five-day work week, will receive pro-rated benefits based on the appropriate standard work year and job classification, except pursuant to applicable law.

"Work Year" falls into two categories: annual (fiscal) year and academic (school) year. Specifically, these are:

Annual Work Year:

July 1 – June 30 of the following year

Academic Work Year:

Certified Teaching Staff: 180 - 227 days (maximum)

Paraeducators/Child Care Workers: 180 - 188 days

Support Staff: 180 - 188 days

TEMPORARY PERSONNEL

A CREC "Temporary Employee" is defined as a person employed in a "temporary position," i.e., a position that is (1) not on the roster of permanent positions, and (2) is approved by the director of human resources or his/her designee. Temporary employees are not entitled to paid time off, to receive any employee benefits, nor participate in any employee benefit programs, such as health or life insurance, except pursuant to applicable law. In addition, employees in this category do not accrue seniority rights or recall rights upon termination.

CREC retains the right to terminate the employment of any temporary employee at any time with or without cause as he/she serves as an at-will employee. A letter of appointment will be provided by the program to the temporary employee specifying the terms of the assignment. Temporary employees must acknowledge the terms and conditions of their employment by signing and returning a copy of the appointment letter. Furthermore, temporary employees are subject to the standard pre-employment process – application and background check. While temporary employees may apply for openings in regular positions through the application process, they will have no preference over other applicants. Information regarding The Temporary Personnel Policy #4220 is available on the CREC intranet under the Policies and Procedures section.

ANNUAL INCREASES

Annual increases that are not governed by bargaining unit contracts are determined by merit basis only. They are effective each July 1.

To be eligible for a merit annual salary increase, an employee under an annual or academic work year must have commenced employment **on or before April 1** of the current fiscal year of employment.

NOTE regarding negotiated contracts:

- Certified Teaching Staff: please refer to your collective bargaining agreement between CREC and the CRECEA.
- Paraeducators/Child Care Workers: please refer to your collective between CREC and the Local 1303 of the Council 4 American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, AFL-C10.
- Van Drivers: please refer to your collective bargaining agreement between CREC and the Teamsters Local 671.
- Nurse: please refer to your collective bargaining agreement between CREC and the American Federation of Teachers Connecticut.

ANNUAL SALARY NOTICES

Annual salary notices are issued prior to August 1 of each new fiscal year. Annual increases not governed by bargaining unit contracts are merit-based only and awarded in July, if applicable. Wages are based on an individual's placement within a salary range. Such placement is determined at the time of hiring based on education and experience that is relevant to the position being filled.

PAYROLL

Timekeeper

Each program has a timekeeper or a supervisor who you can go to for help in filling out your electronic timesheet or issues you may have concerning your check. **All questions should be routed to the program first**.

Your program has a set day and time it will require you to submit your timesheet for payment. All timesheets from the programs are due in the Payroll Department by the end of the day on Monday. Only a program timekeeper or manager may submit timesheets to the Payroll Department.

Payday

Employees are paid biweekly on Fridays. All employees should complete an Authorization Agreement Form. Some programs opt to have their employees' checks picked up on payday at 11 a.m. (Verify with your program to see if it utilizes this option.) Otherwise checks are mailed on Friday (payday).

Employment Eligibility Forms (I-9)

It is the policy of the Capitol Region Education Council to comply with the U.S. Immigration Law. CREC will verify the identity and eligibility of all persons hired after the effective date of the Immigration Reform Act (11-6-86). Employees who refuse to comply with this policy will face disciplinary action.

Direct Deposit

Employees are encouraged to have their checks direct deposited into their bank or credit union account. Direct deposit allows employees to have their paycheck deposited directly into a checking and/or savings account, if the service is available at their bank. This service is available to all employees. CREC Direct Deposit Forms are available in the copy center at CREC Central or by contacting the timekeeper at the school or program.

All employees covered by the collective bargaining agreement for teachers (CRECEA) and paraeducators (AFSCME) shall be paid via electronic direct deposit into a bank account designated by the employee. Such bank account information shall be provided to the Payroll Department via the CREC Direct Deposit Form. Designated banks may be changed in any month except for June, July and August. Please refer to the collective bargaining agreement for further information.



Payroll Deductions:

Costs for benefits, taxes, TSA or 403b plans, etc., that are the responsibility of the employee are deducted from biweekly paychecks. The following is a breakdown of the various payroll deductions.

FICA: A total of 7.65% of the gross are automatic payroll deductions from all non-certified personnel and is mandated by the Federal Government: 1.45% of the gross represents Medicare (this percentage deduction includes certified personnel); 6.2% represents Social Security.

Teachers' Retirement: "TEACH RET 1.25" and "TEACH RET 6" represent your teachers' retirement deductions. The State of Connecticut requires that all certified teachers who work more than half time pay into the Teachers' Retirement Fund. This deduction is made from the first and second payroll of each month (September through June.) In the months where there are three payrolls, no deductions will be made for teachers' retirement in that third paycheck.

Federal Income Tax (FIT): Automatic payroll deductions are made biweekly, based on the number of exemptions claimed on your Federal W-4 form.

State Income Tax (SIT): Automatic payroll deductions are made biweekly, based on the filing status selected on your Connecticut W-4 form.

Insurance: If an employee decides to select health insurance and/or the buy-up/optional long term disability (LTD) insurance, the employee's portion of the premiums will be deducted biweekly. Your benefit package will not become effective until the first of the month following your official start date or the month following a probationary period and the completion of a mandatory orientation session conducted by Human Resources. For any employee who is not on a full 12-month work year, insurance deductions for the months of July and August for health and/or optional LTD coverage will have extra deductions taken beginning February through June.

Union Dues: Union dues or any representation fee authorized or negotiated by CREC contracts will be deducted biweekly each month. For more information, contact your union president.

Tax Sheltered Annuities: The name of your authorized TSA vendor will be reflected on your biweekly paycheck and will also reflect the biweekly TSA deductions. This represents voluntary deductions made biweekly, at your request, for your tax sheltered annuity program.

CREC Savings & Retirement Plan: A voluntary deduction is made biweekly from each paycheck for those employees who participate. The deduction code on your biweekly paycheck will reflect "pension" and will include the percentage elected.

Direct Deposit: All or part of your remaining pay may be electronically deposited into a banking institution you designate. You may have up to 3 different direct deposits.

Note: For year round, salaried employees (excluding certified teachers), your pay is calculated based on your annual salary divided by the number of pays in the fiscal year. Each pay will be 1/26th of your annual salary, starting with the first check that is dated in July. Upon termination of employment from CREC, we will calculate the number of days worked for that fiscal year (what we owe you from your time worked), versus what you have already been paid year to date, to determine your final payout. You will also receive compensation for any accrued and unused vacation days remaining at the time of termination of employment.

ELIGIBILITY TABLES

The following tables provide you with the current listing of the benefits to which you may be entitled. If you have any questions, contact the Department of Human Resources at 860-524-4023. Except where otherwise provided by law, CREC reserves the right to amend, expand, or discontinue any or all benefits at its sole discretion. The specific benefits to which employees are entitled are subject to the applicable collective bargaining agreement, if any. The following eligibility tables are based on a full standard academic (school) or fiscal (annual) year.

Employees working less than a full standard academic (school) or fiscal (annual) year and/or less than a 5-day work week will receive pro-rated benefits based on their work schedule and job classification. Temporary employees will not be entitled to paid time off or receive any employee benefits or participate in any employee benefit programs such as health or life insurance, except pursuant to applicable law.

Administrative Staff – Jobs #101 and 121 Annual Work Year: 12 Months

Based on the terms and conditions during your employment with CREC, an administrator must be hired to work between 20 to 29.9 hours per week in order to qualify for basic benefits. Administrators are not eligible for vacation, medical insurance, or participation in CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan if hired to work for fewer than 20 hours per week. If hired to work between 15 to 19.9 hours per week, they are eligible for sick and personal days only. They are ineligible for benefits if hired to work less than 15 hours per week, except pursuant to applicable law.

Basic benefits: 20 - 29.9 hours per week

Vacation* 25 days annually accrued

Accrued vacation time is prorated if employment begins less than a full fiscal year

(July 1 – June 30). Vacation is accrued at 2.08 days per month.

Sick Leave 15 days annually, accumulative to 180 days maximum

Personal Days 3 days annually
Bereavement 5 days annually
Holidays 14 days annually

Religious Holidays 3 days annually (upon approval)

CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan — A CREC match is available to eligible, participating, non-certified administrators including Cabinet members in Job Code 121 only.

In addition, participating non-certified administrators are eligible to receive either a minimum \$1000 administrator annuity or a maximum \$2000 administrator annuity. To receive the maximum \$2,000 administrator's annuity benefit, a participating non-certified administrator must contribute a minimum of 8% of compensation or \$8,000, whichever is greater. Otherwise, the minimum \$1,000 administrator annuity contribution benefit will be applied.

A newly hired, non-certified administrator with less than two years of continuous employment who elects to participate in the plan, must contribute at least 1% of compensation or \$1,000 whichever is greater.

Certified administrators are not eligible to receive a CREC match. However, CREC does offer certified administrators (including certified Cabinet members) the choice of participating in the minimum \$1,000 administrator annuity benefit for certified administrators who contribute 1% of annual compensation or \$1,000, whichever is greater or the maximum \$2,000 administrator annuity benefit for certified administrators who contribute 2% of annual compensation or \$2,000, whichever is greater. Depending on contribution annuity choice, CREC will deposit either \$250 or \$500 each quarter into a participating administrator's account.

	1 0 1
Vision	Copayment amounts are applicable to Network Provider examinations and materials. Members save 20% to 40% or more off retail when visiting an Anthem Network Provider. Reimbursements vary for services out-of-network.
Dental	Anthem BC&BS Flexible Dental Plan. Calendar year maximum \$2,000 per covered member, per year. This plan also includes orthodonture

Premium share varies depending on option chosen.

Hired to work at 30 or more hours per week

Medical

INSURANCE

Benefits remain the same as above with the addition of life and disability insurance.

Life Insurance: 100% paid. Amount payable is twice an employee's annual salary rounded to the nearest thousandth.

*Vacation time can be carried over for one year only with the exception of positions in grant-funded programs. No further vacation carryover beyond the next fiscal year.

coverage.

CCW/Paraeducator - Job #122 - Academic Work Year

Based on the terms and conditions during your employment with CREC, a paraeducator or child care worker must be hired to work between 20 - 29.9 hours per week in order to qualify for basic benefits. Workers are not eligible for vacation, medical insurance, or participation in CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan if hired to work fewer than 20 hours per week. If hired to work between 15 to 19.9 hours per week, paraeducators and child care workers are eligible for sick and personal days only. They are ineligible for benefits if hired to work for fewer than 15 hours per week, except pursuant to applicable law.

Basic benefits: 20 - 29.9 hours per week

Vacation None

Sick Leave* 15 days annually, accumulative to 80 days maximum

Personal Days 2 days annually Bereavement 5 days annually

Holidays 3 days annually - Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and Memorial Day

Religious Holidays 3 days annually (upon approval)

CREC's Savings and Retirement 403(b) Plan - Please refer to the AFSCME collective bargaining agreement, Article 12.

INSURANCE: First of the month following completion of 60 days of a 90-day probationary period.

Medical Premium share varies depending on option chosen.

Dental Anthem BC&BS Flexible Dental Plan. Calendar year maximum

\$2,000 per covered member, per year. Orthodonture coverage IS

NOT provided in this plan.

Excused Absences

Three unpaid days may be granted for personal leave. Please refer to Article 9.2 of the CREC AFSCME Collective Bargaining Unit Agreement.

Hired to work at 30 or more hours per week

Benefits remain the same as above with the addition of life and long-term disability insurance.



^{*} Sick Leave - following the 90-day probationary period. During probation, an employee may use one paid sick day every 30 days which may be used at any time during each 30-day period. Please refer to Article 8.3 (a) of the CREC AFSCME Collective Bargaining Agreement.

CCW/Paraeducator - Job #122 - Annual Work Year: 12 months

Based on the terms and conditions during your employment with CREC, a paraeducator or child care worker must be hired to work between 20 to 29.9 hours per week in order to qualify for basic benefits. These workers are not eligible for vacation, medical insurance, or participation in CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan if hired to work fewer than 20 hours per week. If hired to work between 15 to 19.9 hours per week, these workers are eligible for sick and personal days only. They are ineligible for benefits if hired to work fewer than 15 hours per week, except pursuant to applicable law.

Basic benefits: 20-29.9 hours per week

Vacation* First year, accrued to 10 days annually. However, days are prorated if date of hire is less

than a full fiscal year (July 1 – June 30). Effective the first day of the month following the completion of year six, vacation days are accrued to a maximum of 15 days annually. However, days are prorated depending on date of hire. Effective the first day of the month following the completion of 10 years, vacation days are accrued to 20 days annually. However, days are prorated depending on date of hire. Vacation is accrued at 5/6 days per month from 0-5 years; at 1.25 days per month from 6-10 years; and at

1.666 days per month for 10 or more years of employment.

Sick Leave 15 days annually, accumulative to 100 days maximum

Personal Days 2 days annually
Bereavement 5 days annually
Holidays 14 days annually

Religious Holidays 3 days annually (upon approval)

CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan - Please refer to Article 12.4 of the CREC AFSCME Collective Bargaining Agreement.

INSURANCE: First of the month, following the completion of 60 days of a 90-day probationary period.

Medical Premium share varies depending on option chosen.

Dental Anthem BC&BS Flexible Dental Plan. Calendar year maximum \$2,000

per covered member, per year. Orthodonture coverage IS NOT

provided in this plan.

Excused Absences

Three unpaid days may be granted for personal leave. Please refer to Article 9.2 of the CREC AFSCME Collective Bargaining Unit Agreement.

Hired to work at 30 or more hours per week

Benefits remain the same as above with the addition of life and long-term disability insurance.

^{*} Vacation must be taken during official program "shut down" days if applicable, except that an employee who is eligible for a least 15 vacation days, it may be required that an employee take a maximum of five (5) days during an open period. Vacation can be carried over for one year only, with the exception of positions in grant-funded programs. No further vacation carry-over beyond the next fiscal year.

Certified Professional Teaching Staff – Job #102 Academic Work Year

Based on the terms and conditions during your employment with CREC, a teacher must be hired to work between 20-29.9 hours per week in order to qualify for basic benefits. If hired to work between 15 to 19.9 hours per week, the employee is eligible for sick and personal days only. They are ineligible for benefits if hired to work fewer than 15 hours per week, except pursuant to applicable law.

Basic benefits:

Vacation None

Sick Leave 15 days annually accumulative to 165 days maximum

Personal Days 2 days annually
Bereavement 5 days annually

Religious Holidays 3 days annually (upon approval). Also see Article 31.3 of CRECEA Bargaining Unit

Agreement.

CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan - Although eligible to join plan during open enrollment periods, **CREC match is not available**.

INSURANCE Medical Premium share varies depending on option chosen.

Dental Anthem BC&BS Flexible Dental Plan. Calendar year maximum \$2,000

per covered member, per year. Orthodonture coverage IS NOT provided.

Excused Absences

Up to five unpaid days may be granted for excused absences. Please refer to Article 31, A.4 of the CRECEA Collective Bargaining Unit Agreement.

Hired to work at 30 or more hours per week

Benefits remain the same as above with the addition of life and disability insurance.



Certified Professional Teaching Staff – Job #102 Annual Work Year: 12 Months

Based on the terms and conditions during your employment with CREC, a teacher must be hired to work between 20-29.9 hours per week in order to qualify for basic benefits. Certified Professional Teaching Staff are not eligible for vacation time, if hired to work between 15 to 19.9 hours per week. Employees are ineligible for benefits if hired to work less than 15 hours and are eligible for sick and personal days only, except pursuant to applicable law.

Basic benefits:

Vacation None

Time Off Up to 20 days unpaid maximum annually

Article 16.B of the CRECEA Bargaining Unit Agreement

Sick Leave 5 days annually accumulative to 165 days maximum

Personal Days 2 days annually Bereavement 5 days annually

Holidays 14 days unpaid, Article 16.B of CRECEA Bargaining Unit Agreement

Religious Holidays 3 days annually (upon approval), also see Article 31.3 of CRECEA Bargaining Unit

Agreement

CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan - Although eligible to join plan during enrollment periods, **CREC match is not available**.

INSURANCE Medical Premium share varies depending on option chosen

Dental Anthem BC&BS Flex Dental Plan. Calendar year maximum \$2,000

per covered member, per year. Orthodonture coverage IS NOT

provided in this plan.

Excused Absences

Up to five unpaid days may be granted for excused absences. Please refer to Article 31, A.4 of the CRECEA Collective Bargaining Unit Agreement.

Hired to work at 30 or more hours per week

Benefits remain the same as above with the addition of life and long-term disability insurance.

Professional Staff – Job #129 – Academic Work Year

Based on the terms and conditions during your employment with CREC, Professional Staff must be hired to work between 20 to 29.9 hours per week in order to qualify for basic benefits. Professional Staff working an academic year are not eligible for vacation time. If hired to work between 15 to 19.9 hours per week, Professional Staff are eligible for sick and personal days only. Professional Staff are ineligible for benefits if hired to work fewer than 15 hours per week, except pursuant to applicable law.

Basic benefits: 20 - 29.9 hours per week

Vacation none

Sick Leave 15 days annually accumulative to 165 days maximum.

Personal Days 2 days annually Bereavement 5 days annually

Religious Holidays 3 days annually (upon approval)

CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan - CREC match after completion of 2 years of employment.

INSURANCE Medical Premium share varies depending on option chosen.

Vision Copayment amounts are applicable to Network Provider

examinations and materials. Members save 20% to 40% or more off

retail when visiting an Anthem Network Provider. Reimbursements vary for services out-of-network.

Dental Anthem BC&BS Flexible Dental Plan. Calendar year maximum \$2,000

per covered member, per year. This plan also includes orthodonture

coverage.

Hired to work at 30 or more hours per week

Benefits remain the same as above with the addition of life and long-term disability insurance.

Professional Staff – Job #129 – Annual Work Year: 12 months

Based on the terms and conditions during your employment with CREC, Professional Staff must be hired to work between 20-29.9 hours per week in order to qualify for basic benefits. Professional Staff are not eligible for vacation, medical insurance, or participation in CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan if hired to work fewer than 20 hours per week. If hired to work between 15 to 19.9 hours per week, Professional Staff are eligible for sick and personal days only. Professional Staff are ineligible for benefits if hired to work fewer than 15 hours per week, except pursuant to applicable law.

Basic benefits: 20 - 29.9 hours per week

Vacation* 20 days accrued annually. Accrued vacation is prorated if length of employment is less

than a full fiscal year (July 1 – June 30). Vacation is accrued at 1.666 days per month.

Sick Leave 15 days annually accumulative to 165 days maximum

Personal Days 2 days annually
Bereavement 5 days annually
Holidays 14 days annually

Religious Holidays 3 days annually (upon approval)

CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan - CREC match after completion of 2 years of employment.

INSURANCE Medical Premium share varies depending on option chosen.

Vision Copayment amounts are applicable to Network Provider examinations

and materials. Members save 20% to 40% or more off retail when visiting

an Anthem Network Provider. Reimbursements vary for services

out-of-network.

Dental Anthem BC&BS Flex Dental Plan. Calendar year maximum \$2,000

per covered member, per year. This plan also includes orthodonture

coverage.

Hired to work at 30 or more hours per week

Benefits remain the same as above, plus they include life and long-term disability insurance.

^{*}Vacation can be carried over for 1 year with the exception of positions in grant-funded programs. No further vacation carryover beyond the next fiscal year.

Support Staff – Job #123 – Academic Work Year

Based on the terms and conditions during your employment with CREC, Support Staff must be hired to work between 20 to 29.9 hours per week in order to qualify for basic benefits. Support Staff working an academic year are not eligible for vacation time. If hired to work between 15 to 19.9 hours per week, Support Staff are eligible for sick and personal days only. Support Staff are ineligible for benefits if hired to work fewer than 15 hours per week, except pursuant to applicable law.

Basic benefits: 20 - 29.9 hours per week

Vacation None

Sick Leave 15 days annually accumulative to 165 days maximum

Personal Days 2 days annually Bereavement 5 days annually

Religious Holidays 3 days annually (upon approval)

CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan - CREC match after completion of 2 years of employment.

INSURANCE Medical Premium share varies depending on option chosen.

Vision Copayment amounts are applicable to Network Provider examinations

and materials. Members save 20% to 40% or more off retail when visiting

an Anthem Network Provider. Reimbursements vary for services

out-of-network.

Dental Anthem BC&BS Flexible Dental Plan. Calendar year maximum

\$2,000 per covered member, per year. This plan also includes

orthodonture coverage.

Hired to work at 30 or more hours per week

Benefits remain the same as above, plus they include life and long-term disability insurance.

Support Staff – Job #123 – Annual Work Year: 12 Months

Based on the terms and conditions during your employment with CREC, Support Staff must be hired to work between 20 to 29.9 hours per week in order to qualify for basic benefits. Support Staff are not eligible for vacation, medical insurance, or participation in CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan if hired to work fewer than 20 hours per week. If hired to work between 15 to 19.9 hours per week, Support Staff are eligible for sick and personal days only. Support Staff are ineligible for benefits if hired to work fewer than 15 hours per week, except pursuant to applicable law.

Basic benefits: 20 - 29.9 hours per week

Vacation* First year, accrued to 12 days annually. However, vacation days are prorated if date of

hire is less than a full fiscal year (July 1 – June 30). Effective with the first day of the following month after the completion of year four, vacation is accrued up to a maximum of 15 days annually. However, days are prorated depending on date of hire. Effective the first day of the following month after the completion of year seven, vacation is accrued to 20 days annually. However, days are prorated depending on date of hire. Vacation is accrued at 1.0 days per month from 0-4 years, 1.25 days per month from 4-7 years, and

1.666 days per month with 7 or more years of employment.

Sick Leave 15 days annually accumulative to 165 days maximum

Personal Days 2 days annually
Bereavement 5 days annually
Holidays 14 days annually

Religious Holidays 3 days annually (upon approval)

CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan

INSURANCE Medical Premium share varies depending on option chosen.

Vision Copayment amounts are applicable to Network Provider

examinations and materials. Members save 20% to 40% or more off retail when visiting an Anthem Network Provider. Reimbursements

vary for services out-of-network.

Dental Anthem BC&BS Flexible Dental Plan. Calendar year maximum \$2,000

per covered member, per year. This plan also includes orthodonture

coverage.

Hired to work at 30 or more hours per week

Benefits remain the same as above with the addition of life and long-term disability insurance.

^{*} A maximum of up to one year's accrued, remaining vacation may be carried over each year, with the exception of grant funded programs.

Van Driver – Job #123 – Academic Work Year

Based on the terms and conditions of employment with CREC, a van driver must be hired to work 20 hours per week to qualify for basic benefits, except pursuant to applicable law. A van driver hired to work 30 or more hours per week is eligible for basic benefits as well as insurance.

Basic benefits: 20 hours per week

Vacation None

Paid Time Off All non-probationary employees returning shall be awarded eight (8) days PTO at the

beginning of each school year. An employee may elect to have unused PTO days paid out

at the end of the year.

Personal Days None

Bereavement 5 days annually, in accordance with the collective bargaining agreement

Holidays 5 days annually, Thanksgiving, the day after Thanksgiving, Christmas, New Year's Day,

Martin Luther King Day

CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan - CREC match available after completion of 2 years of employment.

INSURANCE Medical First of the month following 60 days of employment

Dental Teamsters Insurance Plan

Eligible employees of the Teamsters Bargaining Unit may enroll in the

Teamsters Insurance Plan.

Life Life insurance is 100% paid, and the amount payable is twice an

employee's annual salary rounded to the nearest thousand.

Van/Bus Driver (Granby) Job #123 - Academic Work Year

Based on the terms and conditions of employment with CREC, a van or bus driver must be hired to work 20 or more hours per week to qualify for basic benefits, except pursuant to applicable law.

Basic benefits: 20 or more hours per week

Vacation None

Sick Leave In compliance with the Connecticut Public Act 11-52 (CGS 31-57r through 31-57w),

Granby Drivers will accrue paid sick time under the following terms and conditions:

1. Paid Sick Leave will accrue at a rate of one hour for every forty (40) hours actually worked in one-hour increments.

2. The maximum accrual of sick time hours is forty (40) hours per calendar year.

3. Up to a maximum of forty (40) hours of unused sick time may be carried over from one calendar year into the next year; however, the employee shall not be able to use more than the forty (40) hours in one (1) calendar year.

4. Granby Drivers are not entitled to any payout for accumulated unused sick leave.

Personal Days None

Bereavement 5 days annually

Holidays 5 days annually, Thanksgiving, the day after Thanksgiving,

Martin Luther King Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day

Religious Holidays None

CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan - CREC match available after completion of 2 years of employment.

INSURANCE Medical Health Reimbursement Account (HRA)

Vision Health Reimbursement Account (HRA)

Dental Anthem BC&BS Flexible Dental Plan



EMPLOYEE SELF SERVICE

Employee Self Service is the Munis® Self Service application that is designed specifically for current CREC employees. It provides access to personal information; pay and tax information, including check detail, W-2's, 1095s, benefit deductions, and certifications. All information presented through Employee Self Service can be printed by right clicking in the body of the page, selecting print or print preview, and selecting the appropriate printer. Paycheck, W2 and 1095-C images can be printed by selecting the image.

Employee Self Service accesses information from, and stores information in, the CREC Munis programs. When information is updated in Munis Self Service, the updates also are visible in the other Munis programs.

Employee Self Service Users

Employees must be an active, regular employee and have a valid CREC active directory login to access the Employee Self Service application. New employees will have access to this service one to two weeks following their dates of hire.

For More Information or Reference:

Munis Employee Self Service on CREC's Intranet Page: http://crecweb.crec.org/tech/munis.shtml

Munis Employee Self Service user guide: http://www.crec.org/docs/1793/CREC_MSS_Employee_Self_Service_User_Guide_Version_10.5_v1.01_LIVE_FINAL.pdf

Munis Employee Self Service Frequently Asked Questions: http://crecweb.crec.org/tech/docs/munis_faq.pdf

For Access

To access Munis Self Employee Service, visit https://munisess.crec.org/MSS/. User Name: Windows User Name (e.g., jdoe, NOT jdoe@crec.org) Password: Windows Password (45-day refresh and sync)

You may also link to the following CREC resources from the Munis Self Service page:

- Employee Self Service payroll deduction codes
- Frequently asked questions regarding self service
- Human Resources benefits
- Munis Employee Self Service user guide
- You and CREC employee manual

BENEFIT SPECIFICS

CREC offers a comprehensive benefit package for eligible employees covering medical, life and disability insurance, 403(b) savings and retirement plan, sick time, personal time for religious holidays and family observances, and vacation time. Where there are differences between the provisions of this manual and specific statements contained in CREC's files (such as insurance policies), those specific statements shall control. Please take a few minutes to **carefully read through this section**; it may save you costly and confusing time. Always contact Human Resources when in doubt. As noted previously, CREC reserves the right to amend, expand, or discontinue any or all benefit programs.

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

An Employee Assistance Program (EAP) is a counseling and referral service that serves employees and their families who are experiencing individual or family difficulties. The range of services may involve emotional stress related to family or marital conflicts, job stress, alcoholism and other substance abuse, general health, anxiety, and pressures of everyday life.

The CREC Employee Assistance Program is available to ALL CREC employees, including temporary staff. The services that are paid for by CREC include initial referral and individual counseling interviews, up to three sessions, conducted by highly qualified clinical social workers and psychologists. The employee assumes financial responsibility for any additional diagnostic or treatment sessions which may be recommended.

All records regarding an employee's participation in the program are held in strict confidence. No information regarding the nature of such problems will be discussed with school administrators or other personnel, nor will it be included in any school file.

Employees interested in seeking confidential help from the EAP are urged to call the EAP at 860-524-4032 for more information. Information on the CREC EAP may also be retrieved from the CREC Intranet at crecweb.crec. org. Supervisory personnel may advise employees of the program when their problems have affected their job performance. Remember, EAP is available to assist employees.

FLEXIBLE BENEFITS - SECTION 125

Based on the terms and conditions during your employment, CREC's Flexible Spending Accounts-Section 125 Program allows eligible participants who are hired to work 20 hours or more to use pre-tax dollars (IRS maximum is currently \$2,550 for medical, and there is up to a \$5,000 maximum for dependent care). This program is administered through Stirling Benefits, Inc., and the pre-tax dollars are used to pay for out-of-pocket medical copays or deductibles, dependent care, and unreimbursed medical expenses that are incurred from January 1 through December 31 each year.

Unused funds, up to \$500 as of the last day of the plan year, will carry over and be available for the new plan year and through the submission period (March 31). Current plan year expenses will be reimbursed with the current plan year salary reductions first, and carryover funds within the submission period will be applied as needed, per IRS ordering rule. Carryover funds remaining after the submission period will be available through the end of the plan year.

Carryover funds are available to participants regardless of whether they elect to have a salary reduction election in the next plan year. The carryover option does not apply to dependent care.

PLEASE NOTE: Re-enrollment is not automatic. A new form must be completed each year during the open enrollment period (early November through early December) for a January 1 effective date, or at the time of a "qualifying event." Detailed information on the Health and Dependent Care Flexible Spending Accounts – Section 125 is available on the CREC human resources website, www.crec.org/hr/benefits.



TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

Administrators in job code 101 or 121 who have been employed for one year or more are eligible to apply and receive tuition reimbursement for a maximum of \$2,000 per year, per approval, if the following conditions are satisfied:

- All courses must be approved by the respective Cabinet supervisor.
- A grade of a "B" or better must be achieved.
- A receipt from the college must be submitted for reimbursement.
- Applications must be submitted for approval prior to the start of the course.

Reimbursement will be paid after the completion of the course unless approved by a Cabinet supervisor.

Doctorate Finance Program for Administrators in Job Codes 101 and 121

CREC will reimburse the cost of a doctorate program from an accredited college or university, upon approval from the executive director or designee, for up to \$10,000. Contact the Department of Human Resources for additional information.

Teachers in job code 102 are eligible to receive tuition reimbursement pro rata. The amount received should not exceed the actual tuition cost, the in-state UConn graduate course rate, or the amount budgeted for tuition reimbursement. If requests exceed the amount of the tuition reimbursement fund, the total number of classes will be divided into the total account sum. No teacher will be eligible for more than the actual amount paid, or the in-state UConn graduate course rate. Conditions for participation in the Tuition Reimbursement Plan include:

- All courses must be preapproved for graduate course work at an accredited college or university.
- A grade of a "B" or better, or "Pass" in a pass or fail course, must be achieved.
- Proof of the cost and completion of the course must be submitted by June 30 to receive reimbursement.

Reimbursement payments will be distributed by July 31. Please refer to Article 51 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement for additional information.

Professional Staff in job code 129 who have completed two years of continuous employment at CREC are eligible to apply and receive tuition reimbursement for a maximum of \$2,000 per year, per approval if the following conditions are satisfied:

- A grade of a "B" or better must be achieved.
- Tuition reimbursement for undergraduate level courses, or offerings that lead to professional certification or career advancement, are limited to eligible employees who are hired to work 20 hours a week or more.
- Tuition reimbursement for graduate courses is limited to eligible employees hired to work a minimum of 30 hours a week or more.
- Overall evaluation must be on or above target.
- Attendance rating must be on or above target.

Reimbursement will be paid after the completion of the course. To be reimbursed, an employee must submit a receipt from the college or university, proof of completion of the course, including the grade received, and proof of payment. This information must be submitted to CREC Human Resources within 30 days of the end of the course to receive reimbursement.

Support Staff in job code 123, excluding Van Drivers, who have completed two years of continuous employment at CREC are eligible to apply and receive tuition reimbursement for a maximum of \$2,000 per year, per approval, if the following conditions are satisfied:

- The support staff employee must have passed the first open enrollment period following the completion of two years of actual employment.
- The employee must be hired to work 20 hours per week or more.
- A grade of a "B" or better must be achieved.
- Overall evaluation must be on or above target.
- Attendance ratings must be on or above target.

Reimbursement will be paid after the completion of the course. Employees must submit a receipt from the college or university, proof of completion of the course, including the grade received, and proof of payment. This information must be submitted to CREC Human Resources within 30 days of the end of the course to receive reimbursement.

Paraeducators and Child Care Workers in job code 122 are eligible to apply and receive tuition reimbursement for a maximum of \$2,000 per year, per approval, if the following conditions are satisfied:

- The employee must have completed at least two years of continuous employment at CREC.
- The employee must have passed the first open enrollment period following the completion of two years of actual employment.
- The employee must be scheduled to work 20 hours a week or more.
- A grade of a "B" or better must be achieved.
- Overall evaluation must be on or above target.
- Attendance ratings must be on or above target.

Reimbursement will be paid after the completion of the course. An employee must submit a receipt from the college or university, proof of completion of the course, including the grade received, and proof of payment. This information must be submitted to CREC Human Resources within 30 days of the end of the course to receive reimbursement.

For more information regarding tuition reimbursement for any job classification, visit CREC's Intranet and look under the Human Resources section, crecweb.crec.org. You can also contact CREC Human Resources directly.

LEAVE TIME

Approved leave time offered by CREC may or may not be paid. It depends on the type of leave and/or applicable benefit time that an employee requesting a leave has available. Please note: all leave time must be approved by the executive director or executive designee. If an employee requesting a leave is part of a bargaining unit, that employee must also follow basic employee rules. Leaves of absences are intended to cover specific emergencies in an individual's personal life. Leave days must be requested in whole or half-day increments. **Please note**: during any leave of absence including Family Medical Leave Act, no additional benefits accrue.

Sick Leave: Sick leave is accumulated throughout an individual's employment up to varying maximums. These days may be used in units of one-half or whole days. In addition, if any employee uses up all his/her accrued benefits due to illness, scheduled surgery, or because an employee anticipates using up all applicable benefit time not covered under the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA), if applicable, the executive director may grant an unpaid leave of absence for up to an additional 8 to 12 weeks for disability or medical reasons. In addition, a program manager can grant up to a five-day absence without pay. All sick, personal, and vacation time must be exhausted before an unpaid leave of absence will be granted. Contact the Department of Human Resources for information on disability leaves. Paid sick leave may be counted against the FMLA entitlement as noted above. When employees leave CREC they are not eligible to be paid for accumulated sick days.

Leaves of Absence (paid/unpaid): An employee who is disabled and unable to work may use accumulated sick leave to cover the period of disability. At the end of the period covered by accumulated sick leave, and if the employee's physician continues to certify that he/she is unable to work due to a disability, the employee may request a disability leave from the executive director (teachers and para/ccws: also refer to your bargaining unit agreements). Disability leaves due to pregnancy follow the procedures above. For specific information, please refer to your union contract if applicable or call CREC Human Resources.

Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA): The FMLA entitles an eligible employee up to 12 work weeks of unpaid leave during any rolling 12-month period. An eligible employee must have been employed for 12 months and have worked 1,250 hours immediately preceding the leave, and work for an employer with 50 or more employees within a 75 mile radius.

Leave under the FMLA may be taken for the following reasons:

- the birth of a child, or placement of a child for adoption or foster care;
- a serious health condition that makes an employee unable to work or unable to perform the essential functions of his/her job;
- a serious health condition affecting an employee's spouse, child, or parent for which the employee is needed to provide care;
- a "qualifying exigency" arising from an employee's spouse, child, or parent, being on active duty in the Armed Forces; or
- the need to care for a wounded service member affecting the employee's spouse, child, parent, themselves, or next-of-kin.

Military Family and Medical Leave: Eligible employees are entitled to up to 12 work weeks of leave because of "any qualifying exigency" arising out of the fact that the spouse, son, daughter, or parent of the employee is on active duty or has been notified of an impending call to active duty status, in support of a contingency operation. By the terms of the statute, this provision requires the Secretary of Labor to issue regulations defining "any qualifying exigency." In the interim, employers are encouraged to provide this type of leave to qualified employees.

Military Leave Entitlement: An eligible employee who is the spouse, son, daughter, parent or next-of-kin of a covered service member who is recovering from a serious illness or injury sustained in the line of duty while on active duty is entitled to up to 26 weeks of leave in a single 12-month period to care for the service member. This military caregiver leave is available during "a single 12-month period" during which an eligible employee is entitled to a combined total of 26 weeks of all types of FMLA leave.

As appropriate, all leave time both paid and unpaid will count against the FMLA entitlement for eligible employees taking a FMLA qualified leave. (See "Notice of Eligibility and Rights & Responsibilities [FMLA] form, available on the CREC Intranet under: Human Resources then select FMLA). When appropriate, your program may mail or hand deliver the Certification of Health Care Provider form (also available on the CREC Intranet) and The FMLA Rights and Responsibilities form to an employee who has been absent for more than three (3) consecutive scheduled work days. For absences of 10 or more consecutive work days a completed Certification of Health Care Provider form IS required. The form must be completed by an employee's physician and must be sent directly to Human Resources before an employee's return to work whether qualified for FMLA or not. For more information, contact CREC Human Resources.

Employee Responsibilities: When necessity of a leave is foreseeable, you must provide a 30-day notice to CREC or as soon as practicable. Certification of a serious health condition by a doctor or health care provider is required. When a 30-day notice is not possible, the employee must provide notice as soon as practicable and generally must comply with an employer's normal call-in procedures.

During an approved FMLA leave, if applicable, your health insurance will continue (including coverage for your dependents) at the employee rate under the same conditions as if you were actively at work.

You will be responsible to pay your monthly premium share once all applicable paid time has been exhausted under the leave. In the event you voluntarily do not return to work when the leave expires, you will be offered continuation of health coverage via COBRA provisions.

Military Leave: CREC adheres to the law governed under the CT State Statutes. Contact CREC Human Resources for information. For specific information, please refer to your union contract, if applicable.

Personal Days: Personal days are days that eligible employees are entitled to use for any reason. Employees may be eligible for 2 or 3 personal days, depending on the terms of employment and their specific position at CREC. Days are prorated if an employee works less than a full academic or annual work year. Personal days may be used only in whole or one-half day increments. It is expected that whenever possible, the days will be taken at a time convenient both to the employee and the needs of employee's program. The request for personal days should be submitted to your supervisor for pre-approval except in cases of an emergency. In case of an emergency, the request should be made as soon as possible. You must use or lose your personal days by June 30 of each year. Personal days do not accumulate from year to year. Programs may establish limits on when these days can be taken.

Bereavement: CREC policy grants up to five days annually (per fiscal year) for all eligible employees (full, part-time employees working more than 15 hours per week) who have lost a member of their immediate family or spouses' immediate family. Immediate family is defined as parent, child, sibling, spouse, grandparent, grandchild, step relations in the six preceding relationships, or any person who is a member of the employee's household at the time of death. For family members or relatives and others not covered under the definition of immediate family, time for bereavement may be taken as personal days, vacation days, or an unpaid excused absence may be requested.

Van Drivers: Receive up to four days annually (per fiscal year) for bereavement. See above for qualified family members.

VACATION AND HOLIDAYS

All staff members who work under an academic work year follow their school or program calendar and do **not** receive paid vacation or holidays. Employees hired to work under an annual work year may be eligible for vacation days. Vacation days must be taken in one-half or whole increments. All holidays including floating holidays are taken in **whole increments only**. Religious holidays not defined under regular holidays listed below are the only holidays which are not automatically taken and must have program approval **one week** in advance, or if necessary, approval from Human Resources.

Vacations: 12 to 25 vacation days are accrued each year, depending on an employee's eligibility. It is expected that whenever possible, the days will be taken at a time convenient both to the employee and the needs of employee's program. The request for vacation days should be submitted to your supervisor for pre-approval except in cases of an emergency. In case of an emergency, the request should be made as soon as possible. Employees hired to work an annual work year, with the exception of child care workers, paraeducators, and employees in non-grant or funded programs, can take vacation time in either the fiscal year it is earned, or in the next fiscal year. Further carry over of vacation days are not permitted. Employees in grant or contract funded programs may not carry over any vacation beyond the end of the fiscal year or grant period, or whichever is earlier. When employees leave CREC, they may decide to take their accrued vacation time or be paid for any accrued unpaid days still owed to them. You may locate the resignation procedures on the Intranet under the Personnel Policy and Procedures. Employees in programs for which grant funding is no longer available must take vacation prior to the end of the period for which funding is available. An employee who has not taken earned vacation prior to the termination of the program will not receive terminal vacation pay. Vacation is prorated for a partial year of work.

Holidays: CREC recognizes 11 holidays per year plus three "assigned holidays" which are determined by the executive director.

Independence Day Good Friday
Labor Day Christmas Day

Columbus Day (floating) Martin Luther King Day Veterans Day (floating) Presidents' Day (floating)

Thanksgiving Day Memorial Day

New Year's Day

Paraeducators and Child Care Workers who are not on an annual work year and van drivers, shall receive three (3) paid holidays (**Thanksgiving, Christmas and Memorial Day**). Please also refer to union contracts, if applicable.

If a program has a school calendar, all certified, clinical, paraeducator/child care workers, and professional staff must observe it. Floating holidays can only be taken either 30 days before the holiday or 30 days after the holiday. Floating holidays cannot be taken in half-day increments.

Religious Holidays: Up to three whole or six one-half days are available for eligible employees working 20 hours a week or more, to take for approved formal religious observances (not available to employees working less than 20 hours). The observance(s) is limited to that time which is required for the formal observance(s) only. A formal request MUST be made in writing to the program director one full week prior to the day of the holiday(s). Please note that a request for a religious observance(s) may require additional approval from Human Resources.

Records on the number of benefit days available to each CREC employee are kept by your program office. If you would like to know how many days you have available, **contact your program timekeeper**.



RETIREMENT

CREC offers three retirement plans: CREC's 403(b) Savings & Retirement Plan administered through Transamerica Retirement Solutions, the State of Connecticut Teachers' Retirement System, and a Deferred Tax Investment Program. CREC also contributes to Social Security for eligible employees.

CREC's 403(b) Savings and Retirement Plan: Administered through Transamerica Retirement Solutions, this program allows eligible employees to contribute up to the IRS allowable maximum (adjusted annually for inflation) of their income on a pre-tax basis. A catch-up contribution is also available in the plan year you reach age 50. The maximum contribution for the "catch up" provision is the allowable IRS maximum adjusted annually for inflation for employees age 50 or above.

State of Connecticut Teachers' Retirement System: Eligible, certified personnel contribute 7.25% of their annual salary through payroll deductions each September through June. The system offers regular retirement, early retirement, disability retirement, and specific medical and life insurance benefits.

Social Security: A percentage of your salary, based on your average lifetime earnings, will be paid monthly to you, your spouse, and children, if they are eligible, after you reach the appropriate retirement age.

CREC'S 403(b) SAVINGS & RETIREMENT PLAN

CREC offers eligible employees the opportunity to participate in their own Savings and Retirement Plan sponsored by CREC. CREC sponsors a defined contribution 403(b) plan administered by Transamerica Retirement Solutions, Inc. in which eligible employees may enroll or make contribution changes to their 403(b) plan during any open enrollment period. Open enrollment dates are mid-May through mid-June for a July 1 effective date and mid-November through mid-December for a January 1 effective date. You may increase or decrease your salary deferral contributions during open enrollment periods only. However, you may change your investment options offered through this plan at any time.

You may stop contributions at any time (changes will become effective with the next pay period). To be eligible to participate, you must be hired to work 20 hours or more per week. For additional information, contact CREC Human Resources.

CREC offers matching contributions to eligible employees, after the completion of two years of continuous employment. It is an amount of money that is deposited into your retirement account—as illustrated in the employee contribution matching table, below. Please refer to union contracts, if applicable.

CREC's Savings & Retirement Plan matching schedule for qualified participants:

Employee Contribution	CREC Contributes
Percent of Salary	Percent of Salary
1	1
2	2
3	3
4	3.6
5	4.2
6	5

An annual minimum of \$1,000 or a \$2,000 maximum administrator annuity benefit is provided to certified and non-certified administrators who participate in the CREC Savings and Retirement 403(b) Plan administered through Transamerica. Additionally, a quarterly deposit is made to participating administrators account, according to their contribution (including Cabinet members) hired to work at 20 or more hours per week. Certain provisions apply to certified and non-certified administrators. Contact CREC Human Resources for more information.

With Transamerica, you make your own investment decisions in the allotted asset allocation funds managed by Transamerica. The entire amount is 100% vested and you derive the benefits of any growth in the account. You also bear the risk if the account loses value. You may contact Transamerica at 1-800-755-5801 or access their website at my.trsretire.com for more information relative to your account. Account reports are distributed quarterly to your home address by Transamerica. For more information, please visit www.crec.org/hr/benefits.

CREC ROTH 403(b)

A Roth 403(b) administered through Transamerica is also available to participants as an after-tax salary deferral contribution. The Roth 403(b) option will afford significant tax advantages to some taxpayers. Contact CREC Human Resources to learn more information about the Roth 403(b).

TAX SHELTERED ANNUITIES

As an eligible CREC employee, you may elect to participate in an approved Tax Sheltered Annuity (TSA). A TSA provides you with an opportunity to deposit some of your pre-tax income into a variety of savings, annuities, or insurance plans. CREC has authorized a number of vendors. Participation using a TSA is through payroll deduction. Most employees will be able to deposit up to the IRS allowable maximum each year as long as legal requirements are met. There is no waiting period to enroll. For more specific information please contact CREC Human Resources.

INDIVIDUAL AUTO/HOME INSURANCE

This benefit is available to ALL CREC employees, including temporary employees. CREC and Travelers offer a discounted homeowner's and auto insurance program called Benefits Plus. This benefit offers interested employees the opportunity to save on their personal insurance costs. Patrick Walsh or Augusto Russell, representatives of May, Bonee & Walsh will provide professional, personal consultations to employees. You may contact May, Bonee & Walsh at 860-246-5387 for more information. CREC Human Resources may also be contacted for additional information.

HEALTH INSURANCE

Health Plan Summary Options:

CREC offers multiple plans for participating employees who are normally scheduled to work 20 hours or more per week and meet all eligibility requirements, except pursuant to applicable law. CREC's health insurance plans are meant to help meet the needs of you and your family.

Please review the plan design summaries for your job classification. This will help you determine the best health plan option for you and your family. All available health plans are offered through Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield. Please review the plan design summaries for each specified group.

Dependent Age Maximum: A dependent child may stay on your health plan until they turn 26, regardless of whether they are in school; not in school; married; live in Connecticut; or working. Health coverage will end on the last day of the month of the dependent's birth date. A dependent child cannot continue on a health plan after age 19 if they work for a company or organization and are eligible to receive their own health coverage. Health insurance will end at on the last day of the month of dependent's birth date.

Open Enrollment: An annual open enrollment period begins in mid-November and run through mid-December with a January 1 effective date. This allows eligible employees who are hired to work at least 20 hours per week the opportunity to enroll in or change health coverage through their employer without the application of a "pre-existing condition."

At this time, you can change plans if you or your dependents have acquired a medical problem. At other times, you can only make changes within 31 days of a change in family circumstances, or a "qualifying event," such as marriage, spouse loses coverage, etc. You have 61 days from the date you give birth or adopt a child to add that child to your health plan.

However, you may terminate your coverage at any time. Termination of coverage will be effective the first day of the following month and an application must be completed to cancel your coverage.

Coverage Effective Dates: All medical plans are effective on the first day of the month you are hired. Otherwise, all medical plans are effective on the first day of the month after your official date of hire. Paraeducators and child care workers are eligible to be enrolled within 60 days of a 90-day probationary period. Please refer to Article 12 of the CREC and AFSCME Collective Bargaining Agreement. Van Drivers are eligible to be enrolled within 60 days of employment. Please refer to Article 17 of the Teamsters Local 671 and CREC Collective Bargaining Agreement.

Customer Service: Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield strives to provide quality customer service. For additional information, call Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield at 1-800-233-4947, or visit www.anthem.com.



CREC HEALTH INSURANCE PLAN HIGHLIGHTS

Job Titles and Codes	Plan Name and Group Number	In Network Medical	Out of Network Medical	RX Drug	Vision	Dental
	Anthem Bluecare Point of Enrollment (POE) Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) 004715-016 (Unavailable after December 31, 2017)		Emergency Only			
Teachers Job Code: 102	Anthem Century Preferred – Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) 004715-037		80% Coverage			
	Anthem Lumenos Health Savings Account (HSA) Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) 004715-022		80% Coverage			
Paraeducators and Child Care	Anthem Bluecare Point of Enrollment (POE) Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) 004175-017		Emergency Only			
Workers Job Code: 122 Health coverage 1st of the	Anthem Lumenos Health Savings Account (HSA) Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) 004175-144		80% Coverage			
month following 60 days of employment.	Anthem Century Preferred – Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) 004175-038 (staff who live out of state only)		80% Coverage			
Administrators	Anthem Century Preferred – Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) 004175-003 (staff who live out of state only)		80% Coverage			
Job Codes: 101 and 121 &	Anthem Lumenos Health Savings Account (HSA) Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) 004175-023		80% Coverage			
Professional and Support Staff Job Codes: 129	Anthem Bluecare Point of Enrollment (POE) Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) 004175-015		Emergency Only			
and 123	Anthem Bluecare Point of Service (POS) 004175-025		80% Coverage			
Van Drivers Job Code: 123 Health coverage 1st of the month following 60 days of employment.	Teamsters Insurance Plan Refer to: Teamsters Collective Bargaining Agreement, or contact CREC Human Resources at 860-509-3680		100% Coverage			

For additional information and details please visit the CREC Benefits Webpage at: www.crec.org/hr/benefits.

LIFE INSURANCE AND LONG TERM DISABILITY (LTD) INSURANCE

Life Insurance is available for eligible employees who are hired to work 30 hours or more per week. Life insurance is twice your annual salary rounded to the nearest thousandth and will be paid to your most recent beneficiary. An accidental death and dismemberment rider gives you coverage of four times your annual salary rounded to the nearest thousandth.

Long Term Disability is a benefit for eligible employees hired to work 30 hours or more per week. Employees have a one-time opportunity to select regular/core LTD or supplemental/ optional LTD. Regular/core LTD is paid 100% by CREC. There is no cost to you. It pays up to 50% of your gross monthly salary. Supplemental/optional LTD is 50% paid by CREC; you pay the other half. Supplemental/optional LTD pays up to 60% of your gross monthly income up to \$8,000. If no selection is made by an eligible employee to enroll into the supplemental/optional LTD plan, that employee will be automatically enrolled into the regular/core LTD plan. Upon initial date of eligibility all Life/LTD participants are enrolled with no evidence of insurability required. If an employee enrolled in the regular/core LTD decides that s/he may want to purchase the supplemental/optional LTD, after the initial enrollment period, evidence of insurability as well as additional information will be required by our Life/LTD carrier who will decide if an employee is eligible to be enrolled into the optional/supplemental plan. Please refer to union contracts, if applicable.

LTD Plan Options

	Core LTD Opti	onal LTD
Benefits as a percentage of monthly salary	50%	60%
Maximum Monthly Benefit	\$1,000	\$8,000
Elimination Period (6 months)	180 days	180 days
Social Security Elimination Integration Method	Family	Family
Conversion Option Available	Yes	Yes
Cost of Plan	Employer Paid	CREC pays half of the cost

Sample Costs

Annual Salary \$15,000	Monthly Salary \$1,250.00	Monthly Costs \$2.25 per month
\$20,000	\$1,666.67	\$3.00 per month
\$25,000	\$2,083.33	\$3.75 per month

AFLAC

Aflac is a voluntary benefit that offers several policies including short-term disability insurance, which may help you with out-of-pocket expenses not covered by your medical insurance. Aflac's policies pay cash benefits directly to you and your family, unless assigned, regardless of any other insurance you may have. Open enrollment is held once every year. You must be a CREC employee, eligible for benefits and scheduled to work 20 or more hours per week. For additional information, please visit the human resources website at www.crec.org/hr/benefits.

CREDIT UNION

All CREC staff (including temporary staff) are eligible to become members of the American Eagle Federal Credit Union (AEFCU). The American Eagle Federal Credit Union has 10 convenient locations and serves all persons who live, work, worship, and attend school in Hartford, Middlesex, and Tolland counties. Membership requires an initial \$5 deposit which must remain in the account to keep membership active. The interest paid varies. AEFCU offers automatic savings through payroll deductions, loans, club accounts, and life insurance savings. For more information, please visit AEFCU online at info@americaneagle.org, or call the member contact center at 800-842-0145.

VERIZON PHONE DISCOUNTS

Verizon Wireless, through a partnership with CREC, offers a monthly account access discount and discounts on accessories to all CREC employees, including temporary staff, and members of their families for their personal accounts. In order to determine eligibility for this exclusive employee discount, employees may access Verizon Wireless at www.verizonwireless.com/discounts to register their wireless line using their work email address. If you do not have a CREC work email address, access the Discount Eligibility Form, located at www.verizonwireless.com/discounts, by selecting "I do not have a work email address" link. You will need to attach a copy of your pay stub or work ID badge to the completed form before faxing the document to the number at the top of the form. To ensure your request is processed without delay, please complete all required information legibly.

PLEASE NOTE: CREC is not responsible for the management of your plan or the repair of your mobile phone when technical issues might arise. You must contact a Verizon Wireless customer service representative.

POLICIES AND NOTICES

For additional information on all CREC policies, please consult the CREC intranet at crecweb.crec.org.

CODE OF ETHICS

This Code of Ethics is based upon "Standards of Leadership for Members of Boards of Education" recommended by the CABE Board of Directors in 1977:

- I will be a staunch advocate of high quality free public education for all learners served by CREC. In fulfilling my responsibilities, I will think of "children and families first".
- I will uphold and enforce all laws, rules, regulations, and court orders pertaining to public schools. I will strive to bring any needed change only through legal and ethical procedures.
- I will strive to help create programs which meet the individual educational needs of all children and families.
- I will work to help my community understand the importance of support for public education.
- I will join with the Council, staff, community, and students in becoming fully informed about the nature, value, and direction of contemporary education in our society. I will support continuous improvement in our programs and organization.
- I will seek and respect the opinions of others, and abide by the principle of majority rule.
- I will recognize that authority rests only with the whole Council assembled in public meeting, and will make no personal promises or take any private action which may compromise the Council.
- I will acknowledge that the Council represents the entire region. I will never use my position on the Council for personal gain.
- I accept the responsibility of managing appropriate boundaries of confidentiality regarding Council matters.
- I will insist that all CREC business transactions be open and ethical.
- I will strive to appoint the best professional leader available when a vacancy exists in the chief administrative position.
- I will strive to appoint the best personnel available, upon recommendation by the appropriate administrative officer.
- I will refer all complaints through the proper "chain of command" within the system.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION

It has always been and will continue to be the strong commitment of CREC and all its contractors to provide equal opportunities in employment to all qualified persons solely on the basis of job-related skills, ability and merit.

CREC will continue to take affirmative action to ensure that no persons are discriminated against with regard to their age, ancestry, color, criminal record, gender identity or expression, genetic information, learning disability, marital status, mental disability, intellectual disability, national origin, physical disability, race, religious creed, sex (including pregnancy or sexual harassment) and sexual orientation. Such action includes, but is not limited to, employment upgrading, demotion to transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation and selection for training including apprenticeship. CREC will continue to make good faith efforts to comply with all federal and state laws and policies, which speak to Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action.

This CREC Affirmative Action Policy Statement is based both on the spirit and letter of state and federal antidiscrimination laws, regulations and executive orders. Accordingly, care is taken to ensure that no person shall be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be unlawfully discriminated against. Further, CREC will not knowingly use the services of, patronize or otherwise deal with any business, contractor, subcontractor or agency that engages in acts of unlawful discrimination.

CIVIL RIGHTS GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

If you have an unresolved problem that you feel involves discrimination within CREC, complete the grievance form and submit it to the director of human resources. Grievance forms are available in the Department of Human Resources and on the intranet at **crecweb.crec.org**.

- A. 1. Describe the actions/statements/behaviors to which you object. Give specifics.
 - 2. Have you alerted your supervisor or the person(s) with responsibility in the problem area of your dissatisfaction, as described in number one? If not, why not?
 - 3. In reference to your particular problem, what specific changes do you feel are necessary to create a satisfactory situation? Be specific.
 - 4. After you have completed the form, forward to the director of human resources or designee.
- B. Within five days you and the director of human resources or designee will discuss the problem, the methods previously tried to eliminate or alleviate the problem, etc. Together you will determine alternative methods and avenues to be explored. Within four days following the meeting, the director of human resources or designee will write up the alternatives to be explored. These will be delineated specifically with a time commitment that must be followed. If you are unable to come to a viable alternative within five days or after all alternatives have been tried, or you find that none has been successful, you may follow the next step in the procedure.
- C. The next step is to meet with the director of human resources and the executive director of CREC. This meeting will serve to outline the problem, the steps already pursued, and to review the documentation submitted by you and the unacceptable alternatives. This meeting may also involve the person charged with the discriminatory act, if another is involved.
 - Within five days of this meeting, the executive director will render a decision and the reasons in writing. If this course of action proves untenable after it has been tried, or if you are unable to agree on a course of action, you may proceed to the next step. You may request discussion with the CREC Council or a committee of the Council. The Council or committee thereof shall, within 30 days after the receipt of the request, meet with the grievant for the purpose of resolving the problem. Minutes of the meeting shall be kept by the Council or a committee of the Council and made available to you upon written request.
 - The Council or committee thereof shall, within five days after such meeting, render its decision, and the reasons in writing to the grievant. Such decision shall be final.
- D. Utilization of this procedure is not required before the complainant can utilize statutory procedures and remedies administered by the Connecticut Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, and the Office of Civil Rights.

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE

Illicit Drugs/Alcohol on CREC Premises/CREC Events

The Capitol Region Education Council fully complies with the Drug Free Workplace Act and the Drug Free School and Communities Act and recognizes it responsibility to require appropriate standards of conduct by its employees. Drug and alcohol abuse in the workplace presents a danger to CREC, its employees, students, clients and the public. Therefore, the Capitol Region Education Council prohibits the unlawful manufacturing, dispensing, possession and use or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol on school or CREC premises, or as part of any school activity either on CREC premises or off it by its employees. Compliance with these standards of conduct regarding illicit drugs and alcohol are mandatory.

An employee of the CREC workforce who unlawfully uses, manufactures, dispenses or possesses, is under the influence or distributes illicit drugs and/or alcohol while on CREC premises or during school activities (regardless of the site of the activity) will be subject to disciplinary action consistent with applicable state and federal laws and referral for criminal suspension or termination from employment and enrollment in a successful completion of an appropriate substance abuse rehabilitation program.

Members of the administrative staff shall report any suspected violation of the standards of conduct directly to the executive director who will immediately investigate the allegation and meet with the alleged violator. Any disciplinary sanctions imposed will ensure that similarly situated violations are treated in a similar manner. An employee suspected of illicit drug or alcohol possession, manufacturing, dispensing, use or distribution of illicit drugs has occurred, the matter will be referred to the police or appropriate justice authority for further action.

In no circumstances will an employee receive less than a written reprimand where violation has been documented. For subsequent violations or where circumstances warrant, additional disciplinary sanctions will be imposed, up to and including termination of employment. Any disciplinary action that is taken will be carried out in accordance with the procedures as outlined in collective bargaining agreements (where such agreements exist) and applicable state and federal law.

Information about drug and/or alcohol counseling and rehabilitation programs shall be made available to all employees. You are encouraged to use the CREC Employee Assistance Program for additional help and information.

These procedures shall be reviewed biennially to determine effectiveness and consistency. All employees shall be given a copy of the policy and procedures annually.

Drug Free Workplace and Drug Free School and Community

In accordance with the federal regulations implementing the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, 34 C.F.R. Part 85, Subpart F and the Drug Free Schools and Communities Act, and pursuant to the goal of the Capitol Region Education Council to maintain a drug free workplace, the following policy is established:

No employee engaged in work in connection with a federal grant or any CREC workplace shall unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess, use or be under the influence of any alcohol, narcotic drug, hallucinogenic drug, amphetamine, barbiturate, marijuana or any other controlled substance, as defined in schedules I through V of section 202 of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 812) AND further defined by regulation of 21 CRF 1200..11 through 1300.15.

"Workplace" is defined to mean the site for the performance of work done. That includes any CREC building or any CREC premises; any CREC approved activity, event, or function such as field trips or athletic events where students are under the jurisdiction of CREC.

CREC Council Procedures

- 1. The Capitol Region Education Council will publish a statement notifying employees that being under the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace as is the unlawful manufacturing, distribution, dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance or alcohol. All employees will be given a copy of this statement and any employee who violates its provisions will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination and referral for prosecution where appropriate.
- 2. The Capitol Region Education Council will establish a drug-awareness program to inform employees about:
 - a) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
 - b) the Capitol Region Education Council's policy of maintaining a drug free workplace;
 - c) the availability of drug counseling and rehabilitation programs; and
 - d) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.
- 3. It will be a condition of employment for all employees to abide by the terms of the statement referred to in paragraph 1 under CREC Council Procedures and to notify the Capitol Region Education Council of any criminal drug statute conviction or violation occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after such conviction.
- 4. In the case of employees working on federal grants, the Capitol Region Education Council will notify the federal granting agency within ten (10) days of receiving such notice from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
- 5. Within thirty (30) days of receiving notice under paragraph 3, the Capitol Region Education Council will take action either by taking disciplinary action against such employee up to and including termination, or by requiring said employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state or local health law enforcement or other appropriate agency.
- 6. The Capitol Region Education Council will make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug free workplace through implementation of this policy.

Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988

The Federal Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988 contains various requirements for employers who receive grants from the United States Government. The Capitol Region Education Council receives such grants. This notice is published pursuant to requirement of the Act.

You are herewith notified that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace presents a danger to CREC employees, students, and the public. Employees are expected to abide by these rules and report to the Department of Human Resources any conviction. Employees engaging in such prohibited activities may expect disciplinary action up to and including dismissal pursuant to discipline provisions of their respective collective bargaining agreements or CREC personnel policies governing employees.

Distribution of this statement and CREC's employee targeted communication are part of CREC's effort to establish drug-free awareness among its employees. Problems related to substance abuse in the workplace may be discussed with the administrator in the Department of Human Resources, which maintains liaison with its Employee Assistance Program. Alternate methods or referral are acceptable and encouraged. The Capitol Region Education Council seeks counseling and rehabilitation for substance abusers when appropriate to the circumstances.

Should a criminal drug statute conviction result from employee conduct in the workplace, sanctions will be imposed, or in lieu thereof, satisfactory participation in drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation programs may be required.

The Capitol Region Education Council will continue efforts in good faith to provide a drug-free workplace.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

It is the policy of the Capitol Region Education Council to maintain a learning and working environment that is free from sexual harassment. The Council prohibits any form of sexual harassment. All complaints of sexual harassment will be investigated promptly in accordance with Administrative Procedures.

It shall be a violation of this policy for any student, employee, consultant, or volunteer subject to the control of the Council to harass a student, employee, consultant, or a volunteer, through conduct or communication of a sexual nature as defined by this policy.

Sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome conduct of a sexual nature, whether verbal, non-verbal, or physical, including but not limited to, insulting or degrading sexual remarks or conduct, threats or suggestions that an individual's submission to or rejection of unwelcome conduct will in any way influence a decision regarding that person's employment or education or that it will interfere in any way with a person's employment or education or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work or educational environment. Sexual harassment is prohibited regardless of the sex of the victim or that of the harasser.

Sexual harassment by a student, employee, consultant, or volunteer will result in disciplinary action up to and including dismissal or expulsion.

Pursuant to Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 and its implementing regulations, no individual may be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any education program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.

Persons who feel that they have been denied equal opportunities on the basis of sexual orientation or suspect that may be victims of sexual harassment may file a complaint with CREC's Title IX Compliance Officer, Director or Assistant Director of Human Resources at (860) 524-4030, or the Executive Director at (860) 524-4063. You may also contact any of the above CREC administration in writing at CREC, 111 Charter Oak Avenue, Hartford, Connecticut 06106.

SMOKING POLICY

Our policy prohibits smoking in and on the grounds of the workplace or school at any time. Additionally, it is our policy to adhere to the smoking policy of the local school district where the CREC program or activity is located.

WEAPONS AND DANGEROUS INSTRUMENTS

CREC's policy is to prohibit the possession, storage or use of all firearms, lethal knives, and any other weapons or dangerous instruments in, on, or near any CREC building, site, or vehicle, or at any CREC or CREC approved event regardless of location or vehicle used in CREC business. This policy applies to all persons (including but not limited to employees and students) on CREC property or at CREC-sponsored activities, regardless of any lawful license or other legal right to possess or carry a firearm or other weapon. For purposes of this policy, weapons or dangerous instruments shall include, but not be limited to, any weapon loaded or unloaded from which a shot may be discharged or a switchblade knife, gravity knife, billy blackjack, metal or brass knuckles, dirk knife, switch knife, or any knife having an automatic spring release device by which a switchblade is released from the handle having a blade of more than 1½ inches in length, stiletto or any knife with the edge portion of the blade of which is four inches or more in length, or any martial arts weapon or electronic defense weapon, as defined in section 53a-3 of the Connecticut General Statutes, or any other dangerous or deadly weapon.

CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT

The public policy for the State of Connecticut mandates that any person paid to care for children in any public or private facility licensed or governed by the State is required to report any suspected case(s) of child abuse and/or neglect. The purpose of the public policy is to protect children whose health and welfare may be adversely affected through injury and neglect; to strengthen the family and make the home safe for the children; to enhance parental ability to provide good child care; and, to provide a temporary or permanent safe environment for the child(ren) if needed. CREC respects and honors this policy mandated by the State of Connecticut regarding child abuse and neglect. It is the expectation and responsibility of CREC employees to report any suspected child abuse or neglect cases they may encounter. To report suspected child abuse or neglect in Connecticut, contact the Child Abuse and Neglect Careline at 1-800-842-2288.

CONFIDENTIALITY

CREC expects each employee to treat information received in the course of performing his/her duties, confidentially and professionally. Student or employee issues should not be discussed in casual conversation.

TECHNOLOGY POLICY AND PROCEDURES

CREC provides electronic resources in networked learning environments to prepare responsible citizens for an information-based society and to improve the processes of teaching, learning, and managing. The Council has installed networks and appropriate computer technologies within and among its buildings which enable students and staff to share voice, video, and data information. These networks are also the means for accessing the Internet.

Local networks and the Internet enable users to find, manage, and use information from a large number of sources. The Council believes that these information systems enrich the educational experience. However, unlike traditional instructional materials which can be pre-selected through Council-approved processes, the ever-changing nature of electronic information makes it impossible to predict with certainty what information users access.

In this fluid information environment, the Council believes that every user shares the responsibility to abide by existing laws, statutes, and CREC policies and to respect and protect the rights of other users. To that end, the Council requires the Executive Director to develop and implement guidelines for responsible use of electronic information systems. These guidelines shall be called CREC's Acceptable Use Policies (AUP) and shall apply to all users for all modes of access to networks and for stand-alone workstations. The AUP shall:

- 1) comply with state and federal laws regarding intellectual property and ethical use of information, privacy, confidentiality;
- 2) be consistent with other CREC Council policies;
- 3) address issues related to Internet publishing;
- 4) define user responsibilities and acceptable behaviors and consequences for inappropriate usage;
- 5) establish processes and agreements whereby users are equipped with the skills to utilize information systems and are informed of and held accountable for their responsibilities;
- 6) outline CREC responsibilities; and
- 7) ensure the physical and data integrity of local information systems.

For additional information, please refer to Acceptable Computer Network Use Policy on the CREC intranet at crecweb.crec.org

NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES UNDER THE HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

The Capitol Region Education Council (CREC) Group Benefit Plans (the "Plans") are required by federal law, specifically the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 ("HIPAA"), as amended, to protect the privacy of your personal health information and to provide you with notice of their legal duties and privacy practices (the "Notice") under HIPAA.

- This notice explains: How the Plans may use and disclose your personal health information (called "Protected Health Information" or "PHI") and their legal duties with respect to such information
 - Your rights regarding this information

Protected Health Information ("PHI")

Under HIPAA, PHI is defined as confidential, personal, individually identifiable health information that is transmitted or maintained in any form, which is collected from you or created or received by a health plan, provider, health care clearinghouse or your employer on behalf of a group health plan that relates to (1) your past, present or future physical or mental health or condition; (2) the provision of health care to you; or (3) the past, present or future payment for the provision of health care to you.

"Identifiable" means that a person accessing this information could identify the individual or could reasonably use it to identify an individual.

Some examples of PHI include health care claim forms, detailed claim reports, explanations of benefits and notes documenting discussions with plan participants.



How The Plans May Use Your Information

The Plans are permitted by HIPAA privacy regulations to use and disclose your PHI in order to administer the Plans (as described below) without your authorization:

For treatment. The Plans may use and disclose your PHI to coordinate or manage health care services you receive from providers. For example, so that your treatment and care are coordinated, case managers from your insurance provider may discuss your condition with your physician. Or, our benefits administrator may contact your physician concerning potential drug interactions or the availability of generic or formulary alternatives. Please note, however, that disclosure of psychotherapy notes beyond the treating therapist generally requires your specific authorization.

For payment. The Plans may use and disclose your PHI to determine plan eligibility and responsibility for coverage and benefits and to facilitate payment for the treatment and services you receive from health care providers. For example, to make sure that you receive the correct benefits and claims are paid accurately, the Plans may use your information when the Plans confer with other health plans to resolve a coordination of benefits issue. The Plans may also use your PHI for utilization review and case management activities.

For operation and administration of the Plans. The Plans may use your PHI in several ways, including plan administration, quality assessment and improvement, and vendor review. Your information could be used to ensure quality and efficient plan operations, for example, to assist in the evaluation of a vendor who supports the Plans. The Plans may also disclose your PHI to Lindberg & Ripple, our insurance agency (on behalf of the Plan sponsor) in connection with these activities. Lindberg & Ripple has designated a limited number of employees who are the only ones permitted to access and use your PHI for the above purposes of treatment, payment and operation and administration of the Plan. When appropriate, the Plans may share two types of PHI with other Company employees:

- Enrollment/disenrollment data—information on whether you participate in the health plan or whether you have enrolled or disenrolled from a plan option (for example, an HMO).
- De-identified Summary Health Information—summaries of claims from which names and other identifying information have been removed. Summary information may be used by the Company for obtaining premium bids or modifying, amending or terminating the Plans. The Company agrees not to use or disclose your PHI for employment-related actions, such as hiring or termination, or for any other purposes not authorized by the HIPAA privacy regulations.

If you are covered under an insured health plan (such as an HMO), the insurer will provide you with its own Notice of Privacy Practices.

Other Permitted Uses and Disclosures

Federal regulations allow the Plans to use and disclose your PHI, without your authorization, for several additional purposes, in accordance with law:

- For reporting and notification of potential physical abuse, neglect or domestic violence to an appropriate government authority
- For public health and safety
- For oversight activities of a health oversight agency
- For judicial and administrative proceedings
- When requested by law enforcement officials
- When requested by a coroner or medical examiner
- When requested by certain organ, eye or tissue donation programs
- To avert a serious threat to health or safety
- When requested by specialized government functions (e.g., military and veterans' activities, national security and intelligence, federal protective services, medical suitability determinations, correctional institutions and other law enforcement custodial situations)

- For workers' compensation or similar programs established by law that provide benefits for work-related injuries or illness
- As otherwise required or permitted by law, provided that the use or disclosure complies with and is limited to the relevant requirements of such law
- If the Plans use or disclose PHI for underwriting purposes, the Plans will not use or disclose for that purpose PHI that includes your genetic information. Also, any entity covered by the HIPAA privacy rules (such as a business associate of the Plans or a provider) must comply with an individual's request that a specific health care item or service not be disclosed to the Plans, even for payment or health care management, if the individual or other person outside the Plans has paid the full amount due.

Required Uses and Disclosures

Upon your request, the Plans are required to give you access to your PHI in order to inspect and copy it. You may always request and receive a copy of health information that is maintained as an Electronic Health Record (as defined by the HIPAA rules). You may also have an Electronic Health Record sent to another entity or person, so long as the request is clear, conspicuous, and specific and made in writing. The Plans are also required to use and disclose your PHI when requested by the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services to investigate or determine the Plans' compliance with the privacy regulations.

In Special Situations...

The Plans may disclose your PHI to a family member, relative, close personal friend, or any other person whom you identify, when that information is directly relevant to the person's involvement with your care or payment related to your care. The Plans also may use your PHI to notify a family member, your personal representative, another person responsible for your care, or certain disaster relief agencies of your location, general condition, or death.

If you are incapacitated and there is an emergency or you otherwise do not have the opportunity to agree to or object to this use or disclosure, the Plans will do what in their judgment is in your best interest regarding such disclosure and will disclose only information that is directly relevant to the person's involvement with your health care.

The Plans will make other uses and disclosures only after you authorize them in writing, by law including those pertaining to the uses and disclosures of psychotherapy notes, uses and disclosures of protected health information for marketing purposes, and disclosures that constitute a sale of protected health information unless otherwise required. You may revoke your authorization in writing at any time. Any revocation you make will not affect information that was used or disclosed prior to revocation. With only limited exceptions, we will send all mail to the employee. This includes mail relating to the employee's spouse and other family members who are covered under the Plans, and includes mail with information on the use of benefits under the Plans by the employee's spouse and other family members.

If a person covered under the Plans has requested Restrictions or Confidential Communications (see below under "Your Rights..."), and if we have agreed to the request, we will send mail as provided by the request for Restrictions or Confidential Communications.

Your Rights Regarding Protected Health Information

You have the right to:

- Inspect and copy certain PHI used to make decisions about your health care benefits
- Request that inaccurate information be amended or corrected
- Receive a paper copy of this notice, even if you agreed to receive it electronically
- Receive an accounting of certain disclosures of your PHI made by us (as described on the previous page under "Other Permitted Uses and Disclosures") and a written access report that indicates who has accessed electronic protected health information maintained by the Plans.

However, you are not entitled to an accounting of several types of disclosures including, but not limited to: Disclosures made for payment, treatment or operation and administration of the Plans; disclosures made to you; disclosures you authorized in writing; disclosures made incidental to otherwise permissible disclosures; disclosures made before April 14, 2003.

ADDITIONAL RIGHTS

Right to Request Restrictions

You may ask us to restrict how the Plans use and disclose your PHI as the Plans carry out payment, treatment, or health care operation and administration. You may also ask us to restrict disclosures to your family members, relatives, friends, or other persons you identify who are involved in your care or payment for your care. While the Plans will consider all requests for restrictions carefully, we are not required to agree to a requested restriction, except for a requested restriction which pertains only to a health care item or service for which the individual or other person outside the Plans has paid the full amount due.

Right to be Notified of a Breach of Your Information

In the event of a breach of your information as defined under the HIPAA/HITECH Rule, you have a right to be notified of that breach and measures being taken by the plan to mitigate the effect of that breach.

Right to Request Confidential Communications

You may request to receive your PHI by alternative means or at an alternative location if you reasonably believe that other disclosure could pose a danger to you. For example, you may only want to have PHI sent by mail or to an address other than your home. While we are not required to agree to all requests, the Plans will accommodate all reasonable requests for confidential communications. For more information about exercising these rights, contact the office listed below under "Contacting Us."

Complaints

If you believe that your privacy rights have been violated, you may file a written complaint without fear of reprisal. Direct your complaint to the office listed below under "Contacting Us" or to the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services, Hubert H.Humphrey Building, 200 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, DC 20201.

About this Notice

This Notice is effective on September 20, 2016. The Plan is required to provide you this Notice regarding the Plans' privacy policies and procedures and to abide by the terms of this Notice, as it may be updated from time to time. The Plan reserves the right to change their privacy practices and to apply such changes to all PHI they maintain or receive prior to the date of the change.

If the Plan materially change any practices described in this Notice, you will receive a revised version of this Notice by mail.

Contacting Us

You may exercise the rights described in this notice by contacting the Privacy Officer identified below, who will provide you with additional information. The contact is:

Capitol Region Education Council (CREC) Human Resources – Benefits Department 111 Charter Oak Avenue Hartford, CT 06106 860-524-4023

Conclusion: The use and disclosure of PHI by the Plans is regulated by HIPAA. This Notice is a summary of these regulations; however, in the event of a discrepancy between the information in this Notice and the regulations, the regulations shall control.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

CREC'S WORKERS' COMPENSATION MEDICAL CARE PLAN

Any injury or illness occurring on or involving a CREC employee, no matter how minor, must be reported on the CREC Incident/Accident Injury Report form. A copy is located on the Intranet at crecweb.crec.org under CREC Human Resources/Workers' Comp forms. Your supervisor should be made aware of the incident. The report should be signed and sent to the appropriate persons, as indicated on the form.

Information below is intended for informational purposes and does not require any action on your part. The procedures below pertain to work related injuries/illnesses that occur on or after July 1, 2010. This does not apply to your employee medical and dental plans.

Introduction

These instructions are part of CREC's Medical Care Plan which has been submitted and approved by the State of Connecticut Workers' Compensation Commission for providing medical treatment to employees who have work-related injuries or occupational illnesses. It is our goal to provide injured employees with prompt and effective medical care through a network of plan providers, treatment centers and hospitals. The objective of the Plan is to ensure that you receive prompt and effective medical care consistent with your injury and that you have access to specialty medical care if the need arises.

What You Should Do If You Are Injured

If you have a work related injury, you should report the injury immediately to your supervisor. If medical treatment is needed, your supervisor will make certain that you receive prompt medical treatment for that injury at one of the following First Treatment Centers:

Saint Francis Center for Occupational Health 114 Woodland Street, Hartford, CT 860-714-4270 Saint Francis Center for Occupational Health 100 Deerfield Road, Windsor, CT 860-714-9444

After, you may seek treatment from any of the providers listed in the CREC Network of Medical Providers. This directory is available at www.wctrust.com, or you can call the Trust to obtain a current list at (203) 678-0100, or toll free at 1-866-600-0258. *Please note*: if searching the online directory, CREC, as the employer, must be entered first.

If you seek medical treatment from a provider not listed in the directory for a specialty covered by the plan, we are not required to pay for that medical treatment and you risk losing your right to receive workers' compensation benefits and payment for medical treatment, subject to the order of the Workers' Compensation Commissioner.

Emergency Treatment

In the case of an emergency, you should seek treatment from the nearest emergency facility or hospital. You or a family member must also contact your supervisor as soon as possible. If further treatment is required, you must follow up with the First Treatment Center or a specialist listed online. If the physician at the emergency facility recommends treatment by a physician in a specialty **not** listed online, you may choose any licensed Connecticut physician within that specialty. This plan does not restrict your treating physician from referring you for inpatient or outpatient treatment at any licensed hospital in Connecticut.

Additional Information

In some situations, requested medical procedures and treatment must be pre-certified by the Trust's licensed Utilization Review agency. Should the proposed treatment be denied, you, your physician, and employer have the right to appeal that decision in accordance with the appeals process, which will be sent with the denial letter to the provider or is available from the Trust.

If you have any questions about how this plan works or how to obtain medical treatment for a work-related injury, please contact your location supervisor, the CREC Workers' Compensation Coordinator, or the Trust at (203) 678-0100 or toll free at 1-866-600-0258.

TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT

CREC will reimburse an employee at the most current published IRS rate per mile for any job-related travel other than going to and from his/her regular place of work. Travel reimbursement forms should be sent to the Department of Business Services at the end of each month. Reimbursement will be made in the next regular paycheck (added to net pay.)

PURCHASING PROCEDURES

Complete explanations are available at each program office. **NOTE**: Please do not forget: CREC will only pay for materials or services rendered when there is PRIOR written approval via a signed purchase order.

NOTE CONCERNING ABSENCES

Any employee who continues to be absent from work, whether from illness or other causes, and has used up all of his/her accrued benefits not covered under FMLA, can be terminated at the discretion of the Executive Director. In cases of illness, application can be made for a formal unpaid leave of absence for up to eight (8) workweeks. Eligible employees hired to work 30 or more hours contact Human Resources for a copy of the Life/Long Term Disability booklets for more detailed information.

ABSENCE DUE TO INCLEMENT WEATHER OR SCHOOL CLOSINGS

Employees working an academic (school) year do not need to report to work when a program is closed but they must make the day up during the school year. All other staff must report to work unless notified by the supervisor or designee.

ATTENDANCE

Although paid time is provided to you for a variety of reasons, each employee is expected to use benefit time only when necessary. It is important to note that our students are best served when each employee is present in the program. We expect you to maintain an acceptable attendance record so that CREC can deliver the service that students and Boards of Education have come to expect. Regular attendance at work is an essential function of all positions at CREC. Good attendance is part of a responsible, professional behavior.

If you are committed to your job and to the people in your program who count on you, good attendance will come naturally. Your attendance record involves not only days missed because of sickness or injury but times you arrive late to work or overstay a lunch break or other program-approved breaks. Good attendance means you are on the job at the time expected.

If you know you are going to be absent or anticipate absence(s), **contact your supervisor immediately** so arrangements can be made to handle your work. Even if you're only out for a day, it can impact/affect your program.

AESOP

CREC utilizes AESOP, a web-based system, to track absences and secure substitute instructional staff to cover such absences. AESOP is managed centrally by the Department of Human Resources and locally by program level staff. ALL absences MUST be reported in a timely fashion to your program supervisor AND called into the SubFinder system. An employee MUST also follow their program's rules for reporting absences. SubFinder is accessed by entering your PIN number which is your employee ID number located on your pay stub. For additional SubFinder information, please contact the Department of Human Resources at (860) 524-4036, or visit the CREC intranet at crecweb.crec.org.

CREC DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNICATIONS

The Department of Communications fosters public understanding of, and support for, CREC's mission. Outstanding customer service is our number one goal with both internal and external clients. Please keep us in mind if your school or program is working on a project that the Communications team can assist you with.

Working with Communications

Communications is here to support all of CREC's employees and programs. Any project that requires assistance from Communications needs to be submitted through the Communications Project Request Form. This online form allows Communications to track requests, establish realistic timelines for projects, communicate easily with clients, and notify clients when a project has been completed. The Project Request Form can be found at www.crec. org/communications.

You can request support through the Project Request Form in any of the following areas: print and electronic publication development; paid advertising; graphic design; proof reading or editing; web page creation or editing; photography or video production; news or event publicity; fundraising; ordering business cards, magnetic name badges, or letterhead; or select "other" for other kinds of projects.

The Department of Communications maintains a large library of logos, images, files, and information for use by our schools and programs.

Media Policies

Important Media Rules

- Agency-wide rule: Do not, under any circumstance, speak to or email anyone in the media (even to communicate a positive story).
- All media requests must go through the Department of Communications. Direct all calls to the main Communications line: 860-524-4084.
- We may approve for you or someone in your division to speak to a reporter covering a story. If this is the case, we will communicate that approval with you and your director.

Social Media

Social Media Policy

CREC's current Social Media Regulations are available at: www.crec.org/communications/resources.

Social Media Pages

Communications manages CREC social media pages on behalf of CREC's schools and programs. All staff are encouraged to connect with our pages and to send us updates about the work of your school or program to be distributed on our social media channels. Email facebook@crec.org to have your updates shared on CREC's social media pages.

- Facebook: www.facebook.com/CRECExcellenceinEducation
- Twitter: @CRECEducation www.twitter.com/CRECEducation
- Instagram: @CRECEducation www.instagram.com/CRECEducation
- YouTube: www.youtube.com/CRECSCHOOLS
- LinkedIn: www.linkedin.com/company/crec

CREC BRANDING

CREC Logos and Taglines

The agency has adopted a new policy that calls for uniform and consistent use of CREC's logos and taglines to avoid the current variety that weakens the brand. CREC uses three logo formats. For assistance identifying the correct logo for your project, please contact the Department of Communications.

You can download all of the logos by visiting www.crec.org/communications/logos.

CREC General Brand	School Brand	CREC Services Brand	
"Excellence in Education"	"Schools of Excellence"	"Expert Solutions"	
Business Services Communications and Community Relations Executive Director & Cabinet CREC Foundation Human Resources Interdistrict Grant Programs Open Choice Other Central Departments	Magnet Schools Magnet School Central Office and Leadership Team Student Services Schools Student Services Division and Central Department Staff	Community Education Construction Data Analysis, Research & Technology Grants and Development Information Technology Services Operations & Facilities Institute of Teaching and Learning Technical Assistance and Brokering	
Regional School Choice Office		Services Transportation	

Email Signature Guidelines

CREC has established standard email signatures for all CREC staff. Your signature must follow the guidelines provided under Additional Resources at www.crec.org/communications/resources.

The approved visual formats for CREC email signatures are provided on the web page and are meant to be copied and pasted into your own signature editor; all you need to do is plug in your personal contact information. As a reminder, your signature editor can be accessed in Outlook by going to File > Options > Mail > Signatures.

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION

There are several ways that CREC recognizes the outstanding work of its employees. Here are examples of the awards that are given out at CREC:

- Shining Stars awarded to any CREC employee who exemplifies hard work and CREC's core values; given out throughout the school year
- Teacher of the Year awarded once per year at FallStaff
- Core Values Award awarded once per year at FallStaff
- Paraeducator of the Year awarded once per year at FallStaff
- Distinguished Service Award awarded once per year at FallStaff

CONTACT US

Please contact us to find out how we can assist you. Our offices are located at CREC Central at 111 Charter Oak Avenue, Hartford. Visit our site at www.crec.org/communications for more information or call 860-524-4084 with any questions.

MY NOTES

Name:
Job title:
Date of hire:
other important info





111 Charter Oak Avenue Hartford, CT 06106 www.crec.org 860-524-4023